



The Inner Circle Guide to Chatbots, Voicebots & Conversational AI

Sponsored by



Fív

Talkative





The Inner Circle Guide to Chatbots, Voicebots & Conversational AI (US edition)

© ContactBabel 2024

Please note that all information is believed correct at the time of publication, but ContactBabel does not accept responsibility for any action arising from errors or omissions within the report, links to external websites or other third-party content.

Google Cloud Contact Center Al Platform

Accelerate Your Contact Center Capabilities with a Secure End-to-End AI-Powered CCaaS Solution from Google



Delight your customers with human-like AI-powered contact center experiences, lower costs, and free up your human agents' time. Google Contact Center AI empowers your organization to manage multiple channels, automate and streamline workflows, and improve the agent experience all in a single platform that offers security and privacy, along with unified data.

Talk to an Expert!

Google Cloud Ujet.cx





CONTENTS

Contents
Table of Figures
About the Inner Circle Guides
Supplier Directory
Chatbots, Voicebots & Conversational AI: An Introduction16
AI Defined
Conversational AI
Types of Chatbots / Voicebots
Machine Learning / Deep Learning / Neural Networks19
Natural Language Processing / Understanding (NLP/NLU)
Generative AI
End-User Question #1: Are chatbots / voicebots better suited to businesses with very high volumes of customer contact?
Views on the Effect of AI on the Contact Center
Business Issues and Use Cases for Chatbots & Voicebots
Business Issue #1: Excessive customer wait times 27
Business Issue #2: Uptake and effectiveness of web self-service is lower than desired
Business Issue #3: Voice self-service is rigid and difficult to use
Business Issue #4: Customer authentication costs too much
Implementation, success and pitfalls
Implementation: Chatbots, Voicebots & Conversational AI
Initial Actions in an AI Project53
Voicebot Implementations54
Knowledge Management



End-User Question #2: What does setting up and training AI-enabled chatbots / voicebots actually	
involve?	. 58
Making AI a success and avoiding pitfalls	. 60
End-User Question #3: Is there anything that successful AI-enabled chatbot / voicebot implementation	ns
have in common? Any pitfalls to avoid?	. 62
Current and Future Usage of Chatbots, Voicebots & Conversational AI	. 63
Expected Outcomes	. 67
End-User Question #4: Where does the ROI come from in AI-enabled chatbot / voicebot	
implementations?	. 70
The Future of Chatbots, Voicebots & Conversational AI	. 72
About ContactBabel	. 74

Five9 AI Energise Your Self-Service

Expand your intelligence capabilities.

See How

Hello! How can I assist you today?





TABLE OF FIGURES

Figure 1: Views on the role of artificial intelligence in the contact center	3
Figure 2: Views on how customers will perceive artificial intelligence in the contact center	4
Figure 3: What's most important to you when contacting an organization? (by age range)	7
Figure 4: Customer Issue: "The queue time is too long" (by age range)	8
Figure 5: Historical average speed to answer	9
Figure 6: Cost per inbound interaction	1
Figure 7: Proportion of callers that have tried to answer own queries through web self-service before calling	2
Figure 8: Why do customers move from web self-service to live telephony?	3
Figure 9: Overall proportion of calls handled entirely through self-service (only in respondents which offer telephony self-service)	7
Figure 10: Reasons for abandoning telephony self-service sessions	8
Figure 11: DTMF IVR routing menu levels, by contact center size	0
Figure 12: DTMF IVR total routing options, by contact center size	1
Figure 13: Caller identity authentication methods 4-	4
Figure 14: Human / AI email and web chat handling6	3
Figure 15: Level of automation used in web chat, 2019-23	4
Figure 16: Use of AI / Machine Learning, by vertical market6	5
Figure 17: Use of AI / Machine Learning, by contact center size6	6
Figure 18: Mean cost per inbound call & web chat 2018-20236	9

Scale personalized customer support without increasing headcount, wait times, or budget

Imagine ChatGPT was securely trained on your brand and could instantly and accurately serve thousands of customers - all while making your human agents faster, smarter, and more efficient. That's Talkative. With your own generative AI knowledge base, a no-code chatbot builder, and a suite of AI-enhanced chat & messaging channels included, Talkative enables you to automate 50% of queries without sacrificing your CSAT or CX.

What's included



Want to cut support volume in half and provide instant, personalized service at scale?

Book demo

Click 'book demo' to schedule your Talkative demo today



ABOUT THE INNER CIRCLE GUIDES

The Inner Circle Guides are a series of analyst reports investigating key business issues and the customer contact solutions that can help, along with various use cases, the reality of implementing and using these technologies and a view on what the future holds.

The Inner Circle Guides are free of charge to readers. Sponsors have <u>not</u> had influence over editorial content or analyst opinion, and readers can be assured of objectivity throughout. Any vendor views are clearly marked as such within the report.

There are Inner Circle Guides to:

- Agent Engagement & Empowerment
- AI-Enabled Agent Assistance
- Chatbots, Voicebots & Conversational AI
- Cloud-based Contact Center Solutions
- Customer Engagement & Personalization
- Customer Interaction Analytics
- First-Contact Resolution
- Fraud Reduction & PCI Compliance
- Next-Generation Technology
- Omnichannel
- Omnichannel Workforce Optimization
- Outbound & Call Blending
- Remote & Hybrid Working Contact Center Solutions
- Self-Service
- Voice of the Customer.

These can be downloaded free of charge from <u>https://www.contactbabel.com/research</u>.

As well as explaining these solutions to the readers, we have also asked the potential users of these solutions whether they have any questions or comments to put directly to the report's sponsors, and we have selected some of the most popular to ask. These branded Q&A elements are distributed throughout the report and give interesting insight into real-life issues.

The statistics within this report refer to the US industry, unless stated otherwise. There is a version of this report available for download from <u>https://www.contactbabel.com/research</u> with equivalent UK statistics and findings.

"Small" contact centers are defined in the report as having 50 or fewer agent positions; "Medium" 51-200 agent positions; and "Large" 200+ agent positions.



SUPPLIER DIRECTORY





Five9, The Intelligent CX Platform: Bring Joy to CX

The Five9 Intelligent CX Platform provides a comprehensive suite of solutions to engage with customers across their channel of choice, empower managers with insights and intelligence into contact center performance, and elevate your business to deliver better business outcomes and Bring Joy to CX.

Five9 innovates on their platform with partners and continues to lead the contact center industry, bringing together the power of people and technology to enable businesses to drive CX success.

With Five9 you can:

- Move fast with a trusted cloud provider
- Empower agents to deliver results anywhere and anytime
- Scale with AI and a digital workforce
- Streamline with AI and automation

Five9's cloud-native, scalable, and secure platform includes everything you need to deliver excellent customer experiences: A reliable Contact Centre solution; omnichannel engagement; Workforce Engagement Management; extensibility through more than 1,400 partners; and innovative, practical AI, automation, and journey analytics that are embedded as part of the platform.

Rethink your customer experience capabilities with the cloud. Five9 elevates both the customer and agent experiences by enabling your workforce with AI and evolving the contact center through an open platform and powerful product suite.

The Five9 Difference:

- Engage customers and interact across their channels of choice
- Empower agents and managers with AI and automation
- Close the loop with customers and be proactive
- Connect your contact center to the business

Customer First:

• Achieve business success with Five9's results-focused approach to sales, implementation, and service.

Completely Customizable:

• Adopt the cloud contact center to meet your business needs – not the other way around.

Always Innovative:

• Analysts consistently recognize Five9 for its solutions and success as a cloud solution provider.

At Your Service:

• Rely on our team to help you achieve continued success in an ever-evolving environment.

View a demo or contact us today to learn more about the Five9 Intelligent CX Platform.

Contact:

a: 3001 Bishop Drive, Suite 350, San Ramon, CA 94583, USA t: +1-925-201-2000 w: <u>www.five9.com</u> social: <u>Twitter/X</u> | <u>LinkedIn</u> | <u>Facebook</u>





At Kerv, we leverage the power of technology to help our customers stay ahead, providing end-to-end cloud solutions and digital transformation.

Our specialist CX practice, Kerv Experience, are an established Genesys gold partner with 23 years' experience in the contact center and CX space. Kerv Experience's deep expertise of Genesys Cloud helps you completely personalize your digital customer experience, improve customer insights, reduce effort with seamless integrations and automation and to deliver amazing service when it matters most.

As the 2021 Genesys EMEA Customer Success Partner of the year, we help deliver exceptional CX to our customers through the deployment of cloud, digital, data and AI technologies. We help our customers execute on their CX strategy by deploying the correct technology and ensuring they get the most out of the solution over time. Our clients include PureGym, HelloFresh, Heineken, Somerset County Council and P&O Ferries.

Our sister practice, Kerv Digital, work hand in hand with Microsoft to deliver bespoke services for Dynamics 365, Power BI and Power Platforms which integrates with Genesys Cloud to create a seamless customer and employee experience. Cloud Contact Centre as a Services allows you to access constant technology innovation and Kerv are the partner to help you maximize the benefits of that investment.

Contact:

- w: www.kerv.com
- t: +44 (0)330 403 0000
- e: jas.bansal@kerv.com Jas Bansal, Head of Marketing
- e: sales.experience@kerv.com

LinkedIn



LiveVox (Nasdaq: LVOX) is a proven cloud CCaaS platform that helps business leaders redefine customer engagement and transform their contact center's performance. Decision-makers use LiveVox to improve customer experience, boost agent productivity, empower their managers, and enhance their system orchestration capabilities.

Everything needed to deliver game-changing results can be seamlessly integrated and configured to maximize your success: Omnichannel Communications, AI, a Contact Centre CRM, and Workforce Engagement Management tools.

For more than 20 years, clients of all sizes and industries have trusted LiveVox's scalable and reliable cloud platform to power billions of omnichannel interactions every year. LiveVox is headquartered in San Francisco, with international offices in Medellin, Colombia and Bangalore, India.

Contact:

- w: www.livevox.com
- e: cwendler@livevox.com (Craig Wendler)
- t: 1+ 415-671-6000
- a: 655 Montgomery Street, Suite 1000, San Francisco, CA 94111
- LinkedIn | Twitter



How you can scale customer support with brand-trained AI that's enterprise-secure, accurate, and customer-friendly...

Talkative's conversational AI platform lets you <u>automate human-like customer support</u> in minutes - without the need for developers, designers, or months of chatbot training.

By bringing together advanced LLM processing, a no-code chatbot builder, and a suite of additional Alenhanced chat channels, Talkative enables you to:

- Create <u>AI chatbots</u> in-house, without developers or budget restraints
- Train your chatbots in minutes without any coding skill
- Securely hook in customer data to deflect repetitive order / service queries
- Create a dynamic and on-brand chat widget that proactively engages customers
- Escalate to human agents on live chat, video chat, social messaging, and more
- Use brand-trained AI Agent Assist to ensure a fast, accurate CX
- Speed up quality assurance and chat transcript reviews with AI Analytics Insights
- Integrate and pull data from CRMs, Contact Centre software, and more...

It's how global e-commerce retailer Bugaboo slashed their customer support interactions by 50%, allowing their contact team to deliver more dedicated customer care to those who needed it most.

If you'd like to achieve similar results for your team, get in touch by booking a call with us below. In turn, we can show you how to create a brand-trained chatbot in minutes, ready to help you meet your customer service goals.

Click here now: Schedule my call with Talkative

Alternatively, email me directly at fwinstone@gettalkative.com

Felix Winstone, Co-founder & CEO

e: fwinstone@gettalkative.com



Generative AI for CX

Accelerate Your Contact Center Capabilities with a Secure End-to-End AI-Powered CCaaS Solution from Google

UJET is the cloud contact center platform for businesses who put trust at the heart of their customer experience.

Our one-of-a-kind architecture and award-winning CX Intercloud deliver the most dependable foundation for security, reliability, and scale across cloud contact center operations.

With UJET, organizations gain a full voice and digital engagement suite that's equipped with smart device capabilities, powerful AI, and advanced analytics – all intuitively designed to make life easier for everyone involved.

From customers and agents to supervisors and executives, UJET delivers meaningful operational efficiency, higher interaction quality, and mission critical stability.

Innovative brands like Instacart, Turo, Wag!, and Atom Tickets all trust UJET to enable exceptional customer experiences. So can you

Learn more at <u>www.ujet.cx</u>.

Contact:

a: UJET INC. 535 Mission Street, 14th Floor, San Francisco, CA 94105

Contact UJET

e: CcaaS3.0@ujet.co

w: <u>ujet.cx</u>

social: LinkedIn | Twitter / X



CHATBOTS, VOICEBOTS & CONVERSATIONAL AI: AN INTRODUCTION

Al in the customer contact world is perhaps currently best known for chatbots. Conversational Al tools such as natural language processing (NLP), machine learning and analytics run automated tasks and simulate conversation with the customers.

The chatbot program using conversational AI may be given a human avatar and personality characteristics, and can include natural language processing, dialogue control, access to knowledge bases and a visual appearance that can change depending on who it is talking to and the subject of the conversation.

Chatbots – as the name suggests – are found in the web chat channel, but the functionality can be used in any other digital channel, such as social media, email and especially voice self-service in the form of voicebots.

However, chatbots do not always use conversational AI, and rule-based basic chat applications can be used in circumstances where there are a significant proportion of interactions about similar issues, where the chatbot can be tasked to answer these and pass more complex issues to a human agent.

Even without AI, rule-based chatbots can have a positive impact on customer care without requiring large investments or long implementation timescales. Chatbots using conversational AI use natural language understanding (NLU) and can ask questions to understand customer intent and improve the accuracy of the output, and may also use machine learning and analytics to predict and improve future outcomes.

A voicebot is an application made up from AI and natural language understanding (NLU). Voicebots convert speech to text, analyze it and respond appropriately using text-to-speech. It is integrated with CRM or a knowledge base in order to provide a greater accuracy and depth of response. Please note that a common use of speech recognition, such as keyword spotting in order to route a call, is not the same as a voicebot.

Like any machine learning application, voicebots require training, as well as volumes of clean data from which to learn. Voicebots are used to deliver full self-service experiences without requiring an agent, but are also increasingly used for customer identity verification and call routing.

Stay Ahead of the Game:

Tap into the Power of AI to Listen, Understand, and Act on the Voice of Your Customers





In today's rapidly evolving communications landscape, customer expectations can shift at a moment's notice.

The feedback needed to properly inform your decisions can come from multiple channels and sources. Still, it takes time to collect and interpret this data using traditional Voice of the Customer methods.

LiveVox's AI-powered analytics and customer experience solutions allow you to listen, understand, and act on customer insights in a way that traditional methods cannot. With this deeper understanding of customer behavior, you can tailor your products, services, and messaging to provide personalized experiences that meet your customers' needs even before they become aware of them.

Here are just a few innovative ways LiveVox helps contact center leaders stay ahead of the trends and maximize customer engagement.

Gain a Deeper Understanding of Customer Relationships

Are customers feeling positive or negative about your brand, the conversation, or the agent? **LiveVox's Customer Happiness Index** tracks individual customer sentiment over time with Alpowered speech analytics, transcription, and sentiment analysis. This information is conveyed to the agent via easy-to-understand icons, while managers can view aggregate scores and enhance customer relationships through tailored outreach, segmented campaigns, improved call routing, and more.

Uncover Customers' Unspoken Needs and Desires

Machine Learning Driven Intent Analysis from LiveVox automatically analyzes voice and text conversations to determine the true meaning behind a customer's words along with the underlying sentiment and emotion. This in-depth insight into customer intent helps drive strategies related to CX, agent training, content and marketing, and others.

Use Real-Time VoC Insights to Supercharge Agent Performance

By analyzing customer insights in real-time, contact centers can better understand what customers need and make the necessary adjustments to improve service delivery during the interaction. **LiveVox's Agent Assist** uses real-time speech-to-text processing to analyze interactions for customer questions and sentiment while the conversation is taking place. Al-driven algorithms then provide notifications to agents advising them on the next best action to deliver a more personalized service experience.

Eliminate Errors and Bias in Capturing VoC Feedback

LiveVox's Auto-Summary uses machine learning to capture accurately summarized notes of each customer interaction, saving time and providing a detailed understanding of customer issues and feedback. Agents can also update summaries as they see fit. Call summaries are added to the customer profile and can be configured to trigger alerts or workflow actions such as follow-up calls or support tickets. Al tools allow businesses to easily tap into the Voice of the Customer, enhancing customer experience and optimizing operations.



AI DEFINED

Understanding artificial intelligence is a complex matter. Definitions and terminology can differ slightly (or sometimes greatly) depending on who is describing functionality and the technology behind it.

Within the boundaries of this report, AI will be used as an umbrella term for solutions which appear to emulate human cognition through the 'understanding' of complex, natural language requirements, in order to reach its own conclusions, learn and thus improve itself.

Within the wider customer contact environment, AI involves technologies such as machine learning, speech-to-text, deep learning, analytics, chatbots/voicebots and natural language understanding, all closely integrated and working together, aiming to provide outcomes similar or even superior to those achievable by human agents.

Some of the typical characteristics of AI-enabled solutions include:

- An understanding of the customer's meaning and intent, rather than just accurately decoding the syntax of the request
- Use of multiple questions in a conversational format to improve understanding
- Using past outcomes to predict and deliver the likeliest most successful output
- The use of confidence levels rather than a binary right/wrong output
- The ability to learn and improve without constant human support
- The ability to improve future outcomes without constant human input or monitoring.

Here are descriptions and definitions that we will use throughout the report, although do bear in mind that other commentators may have different views.



CONVERSATIONAL AI

Conversational AI refers to software applications such as advanced chatbots (also known as virtual agents) and voicebots (which can be referred to as voice assistants). Customers communicate with these applications using natural language rather than simply keyword recognition, and the bots reply using context and in a manner that a human would.

Through being trained on large amounts of data and using machine learning and natural language processing (NLP), they are can recognize user speech and text along with context and intent. A key part of conversational AI is the ability to improve itself over time through a constant feedback loop which improve the AI's algorithms.

TYPES OF CHATBOTS / VOICEBOTS

Traditional, **rule-based chatbots** are trained to answer only a pre-programmed, specific set of questions, and while they can be extremely useful, are not seen as part of the conversational AI world. They cannot handle queries outside of their programmed scope, and do not use machine learning to improve their responses. Any changes to their output or flow needs to be done manually.

Conversational AI chatbots/voicebots use natural language processing – which includes speech to text transcription, allowing the voice channel to be automated – and have an understanding of the customer's context and intent. Machine learning allows them to improve responses over time. They can handle multiple questions in a single interaction and be deployed across numerous channels, including voice, email, social media and web chat.

MACHINE LEARNING / DEEP LEARNING / NEURAL NETWORKS

Through the use of pattern recognition, previous outcomes and other algorithms, machine learning enables systems to improve themselves without the need for continuous human user input (although supervision and guidance is often needed in reality). It relies upon extensive datasets and computational power in order to make predictions with continually improving levels of confidence.

Based on the workings of the human brain, neural networks consist of input and output layers as well as one or multiple hidden layers (Deep Learning uses multiple layers, each carrying out their own specific task), working to find patterns which will be too onerous or complex for humans to identify. Neural networks can be trained to spot patterns in data and provide accurate output, with programmers correcting any mistakes. Eventually the neural network can 'understand' whether it is producing accurate output with far less human correction.



Neural networks can be set up using supervised or unsupervised learning techniques. Supervised learning techniques involve giving the neural network a specific problem such as "is this customer likely to complain?". Programmers then provide the system with large datasets of customers who have or have not complained, and then the neural network will find patterns of characteristics that make some customers more prone to complaint. They are then able to predict which customers are likely to be dissatisfied, allowing the business to act accordingly. In the case of unsupervised learning, no specific output is given to the system, which will then find patterns in the data and classify groups accordingly. Supervised learning is by far the more common use of AI in businesses.

NATURAL LANGUAGE PROCESSING / UNDERSTANDING (NLP/NLU)

NLP refers to the branch of AI which enables computers to understand human language, whether spoken or written. It goes beyond speech to text processing – although of course accurate transcription is vital – and attempts to understand the actual intent and sentiment of the customer.

NLU is a subset of NLP which looks at the challenges of understanding human communication, such as mispronunciation, sub-optimal word order, slang and other elements which are a natural part of human speech but which can cause major problems for computers due to their unstructured and outlying nature.

One of the keys to successful automated service, whether via telephony or website, is for the user to be able to describe their issue in their own words, rather than feeling that they have to use specific terms or a stilted, incomplete account of the issue. Natural language processing-based systems encourage users to describe their issue more fully, asking follow-up questions if there is any degree of ambiguity in the initial request. One of the obstacles to overcome for NLP-based systems (whether through speech recognition or text recognition) is that many Internet users have been trained to use keywords, believing that simplifying the description of their issue will lead to greater levels of accurate response. In fact, NLP works best with longer and more detailed requests, and it is a challenge for businesses and solution providers to encourage and support users of the system in using the solution in an optimal way.

GENERATIVE AI

Generative AI refers to a category of AI algorithms / models that create <u>new</u> content based on the datasets that they have been provided, using deep learning techniques and neural networks to create similar types of content. Chatbots built on top of a large language model (LLM - a machine learning application) can provide answers to users' questions in a detailed and realistic manner. ChatGPT is an example of this.



It is important to consider which LLM(s) to train your AI tools on, focusing on topics most relevant to your organization's products and services: there have been high-profile examples of generative AI going off-topic with embarrassing, incorrect and sometimes offensive results^{1 2}. It is equally important to decide which internal or external sources of information and knowledge the AI will have access to: solutions may require extensive mapping of subject categories to knowledge bases, whereas others may be able to learn to connect with the correct knowledge base after less training.

Generative AI is capable of understanding multiple languages, has a detailed knowledge of the information it has been trained upon, can carry out a certain amount of reasoning and uses language in a human-like way, including sentiment analysis.

Some experts predict that generative conversational AI – a combination of approaches – will emerge in the near future, blending the natural communication style of generative AI with the accuracy of response provided by conversational AI. The key to this is providing the right type of data and examples of successful interactions upon which to train the AI, providing it with only the relevant data specific to the work it is doing.

¹ <u>https://www.forbes.com/sites/marisagarcia/2024/02/19/what-air-canada-lost-in-remarkable-lying-ai-chatbot-case/?sh=65f98ea0696f</u>

² https://www.bbc.co.uk/news/technology-68025677



Yes, the more "high volume/lower value" questions a customer has in volume ujet.cx the more likely there will be a greater ROI from AI chat and voice bots. But do not discredit the contact centers that do not have high volume. The best way to look at success to see the % of conversations that can be detained by a bot. Not total conversations.



Chatbots and voicebots offer numerous advantages for businesses with high customer contact volumes. They scale on demand and provide round-the-clock support without the need for extra human resources. With consistent responses to FAQs, they uphold a high service standard for every customer, freeing up human agents to focus on more complex

interactions requiring empathy.

Moreover, by automating routine inquiries, they enhance efficiency and cost-effectiveness. These bots ensure quick response times, eliminating the need for customers to wait on hold, thereby preventing frustration and improving satisfaction. In summary, chatbots and voicebots optimize customer support operations, allowing businesses to manage interactions effectively, enhance service quality, and boost overall efficiency.



Not necessarily - AI chatbots can also provide massive value for businesses with lower contact volumes. This is especially true for organizations dealing with high-complexity topics like mortgage inquiries. Either way, AI chatbots can handle a wide range of needs; for more straightforward questions, the chatbot can provide instant self-service. For more advanced issues, it can collect relevant information to route the customer to the right human agent. This pre-screening qualification can maximize the efficiency of human staff, regardless of overall contact volume.



Modern AI-driven CCaaS tools are built for contact centers of all sizes. Modularized offerings allow buyers to select the capabilities that will drive value, at attractive price points, and will scale to support organizations

with tens to tens of thousands of agents. Cobbling it all together yourself would require a massive investment of time and resources, but it's not necessary in today's market.



VIEWS ON THE EFFECT OF AI ON THE CONTACT CENTER

Survey respondents from over 200 US organizations are somewhat conflicted in the view as to whether AI would replace agents, with 26% agreeing or strongly agreeing that this would be the case, and 51% disagreeing to some extent. Respondents from large 200+ seat contact centers were more likely to feel that AI would replace human agents, with those in small and medium operations tending to believe that this would not be the case. There is a general movement over time towards disagreeing that AI will replace agents.

Unanimity was found when the question was asked as to whether AI would support human agents, with all respondents either agreeing or strongly agreeing. In the foreseeable future, it seems the most likely outcome: reducing risk, speeding up responses and providing customers with higher quality resolutions are all beneficial to both customer and business.

83% strongly disagreed that AI would be irrelevant to their contact center (the highest on record), and no respondent from any business said that AI would be unimportant to their contact center.



Figure 1: Views on the role of artificial intelligence in the contact center



There was a unanimous belief that customers would not have a problem with AI if it helps them to resolve their issue as quickly and easily as possible. The uptake in web self-service and automated digital service suggests that customers will accept non-human assistance if it is most convenient for them, which is a positive sign for chatbots and voicebots.

There was also agreement that older generations will take a lot more persuasion to be happy with Al compared to a younger generation that is already used to dealing with Al in their everyday life (e.g. through smartphones or other virtual assistants in the home).

There was also a widespread feeling that AI should not need to be hidden from customers. To some extent, this finding goes somewhat against one of the main ideas about chatbots: that they should communicate naturally with customers, and can even have their own style and personality.

Respondents disagree to some extent about whether customers will always prefer human interactions: 60% disagree, while 24% agree. Our research has found that customers would prefer to speak with humans rather than self-serve, but this is only the case where the time required and outcome received is exactly the same. Where self-service is quicker, many customers choose this first.



Figure 2: Views on how customers will perceive artificial intelligence in the contact center



BUSINESS ISSUES AND USE CASES FOR CHATBOTS & VOICEBOTS

This report focuses on the use of AI to support self-service. There is another report – "<u>The Inner Circle</u> <u>Guide to AI-Enabled Agent Assistance</u>" – which looks at agent-related use cases for AI.

As such, at the most basic level, the business drivers for chatbots, voicebots and conversational AI are around trying to make self-service a better experience for customers while reducing the costs of unnecessary calls.

Specifically, the main business issues that these solutions can help with are:

- Excessive customer queue / wait times
- The uptake and effectiveness of web self-service is lower than desired
- Voice self-service is rigid and difficult to use
- Customer authentication costs too much.

ujet.cx Google Cloud

Google Cloud Contact Center Al Platform

Accelerate Your Contact Center Capabilities with a Secure End-to-End Al-Powered CCaaS Solution from Google



Supercharge Your Customer and Agent Experience

Delight your customers with human-like AI-powered contact center experiences, lower costs, and free up your human agents' time. Google Contact Center AI empowers your organization to manage multiple channels, automate and streamline workflows, and improve the agent experience all in a single platform that offers security and privacy, along with unified data.

2
~&~
9 P

Multimodal, Omnichannel Customer Experience Use Web & Mobile (iOS & Android) SDKs to deliver better support experiences across all channels for a consistent customer experience.

C	-		-	5
	1	J	ł	ľ
L	2		٢.	J

AI-Driven Routing

Improve your operational efficiency with contact deflection, predictive routing, and improved agent productivity. Reduce average handle time by providing deep interaction context and turn-by-turn interaction guidance based on customer sentiment and intent.



Visual IVR

Provide customers with self-service options via Web or Mobile interfaces.

••	-	-	
••	-	-	
••	-	0	ć.
_	포	F	l

Embeddable Experiences

Embed the entire customer journey into your app, including interacting with agents, sharing digital media, and making secure payments.

- Inbound and Outbound Voice, SMS, and Chat Enable agents to handle multiple channels simultaneously and pivot between channels during an interaction without loss of context.
 - Intelligent Forecasting and Scheduling Increase operational efficiencies across all channels and improve agent engagement and customer satisfaction by deploying workforce management tools built for the cloud.



Fitbit relies on Google Cloud and UJET to provide support to our customers with a mobile-first approach. This collaboration, in combination with a strong Salesforce integration, has helped us modernize our entire customer support experience.



Cassandra Johnson

VP, Devices & Services Customer Care & Vendor Mgt. Office Google (Fitbit Parent Company)

To learn more: <u>Talk to an Expert Today</u>



BUSINESS ISSUE #1: EXCESSIVE CUSTOMER WAIT TIMES

The chart below shows the importance of various customer experience factors, based on a survey of 1,000 US customers. Aggregating the results allows an understanding of which factors were placed in the top three overall, while also providing insight on age-related opinion. Figures below are expressed as the percentage of each age group that expressed an opinion.

Having a short queue time is seen as one of the most important factors driving customer experience, with respondents of almost every age group rating this extremely highly.



Figure 3: What's most important to you when contacting an organization? (by age range)

Yet the following charts show that queue time is at an unacceptably high level for most customers: in fact, the most widely reported customer issue is that the queue time / speed to answer is too long.



Looking at segmentations by age group, older customers are somewhat more likely to feel that long wait times happen very often, with more than 40% of over-55-year-olds stating this to be the case.



Figure 4: Customer Issue: "The queue time is too long" (by age range)

Customers are not imagining that the average speed to answer is excessive: the industry statistics bear this out.

Despite high-volume yet simple interactions such as password reset and account balance being carried out via self-service (whether through IVR or the website), the overall industry ASA mean average had stayed relatively steady until 2014, when it began a significant rise. While the pandemic can be blamed for the increase seen in 2020 and 2021, the figures since are still historically high.

To make sure that this is not simply the result of a few outlying respondents, the median is also considered. 2021's median of 50 seconds was a jump from typical figures, and this year's median of 45 seconds suggests that much of the industry is not controlling speed to answer effectively.



This median statistic may be of more interest to readers using this report as a benchmarking tool, as the median dilutes the negative upward effect of the respondents that have ASA figures of several minutes, which skew the whole industry upward, especially within their sector.

Figure 5: Historical average speed to answer

Average speed to answer (seconds)	Mean	Median
Q4 2009	29	-
Q3 2010	31	22
Q1 2012	31	20
Q1 2013	34	20
Q1 2014	43	24
Q1 2015	46	22
Q2 2016	54	28
Q2 2017	50	31
Q3 2018	67	30
Q3 2019	61	30
Q4 2020	75	37
Q4 2021	101	50
Q4 2022	73	31
Q4 2023	79	45

Excessive queue times are without doubt a major driver of negative customer experience, and the US contact center industry as a whole has lost its tight grip on this key benchmark.

Chatbots and voicebots can alleviate this through encouraging more customers to use self-service – whether through digital or voice channels – providing 24/7 service. Adding AI to the self-service mix means that self-service becomes more powerful, approachable and flexible, solving more of the issues that would otherwise have to be dealt with by a live agent.

Rules-based chatbots have done a fairly effective job of answering the most common FAQs, but there is a massive opportunity for more complex issues to be solved through conversational AI, which allows the understanding of context, slang and nuance, allowing customers to ask questions in their own way, rather than having to guess the right keywords.

The following two business issues look at web self-service and voice self-service to show how AI-enabled chatbots and voicebots can improve the take-up and effectiveness of automated service, which will impact positively on queue lengths, call abandonment rates and other CX-related metrics, as well as reducing live call costs.



Launching a Generative AI Chatbot: Top 5 Best Practices

Generative AI presents an exciting opportunity for CX teams. The idea of scaling instant, personalized, and accurate self-service no longer looks like a fantasy. Even so, when it comes to launching a generative AI chatbot, your results are only as successful as your strategy.

So, to help you launch a successful AI customer service strategy, here are our top five recommendations for building and maintaining customer-friendly chatbots with generative AI.

- 1. **Quality data ensures quality answers:** Before launching a generative AI chatbot, consider what results you want to achieve from AI automation and what organizational information you currently have available. By clarifying the specific purpose of your chatbot and gathering only the most accurate, up-to-date knowledge, you're better placed to create an AI chatbot that drives accurate and helpful service.
- 2. Launch fast with a generative-first approach: One of the key benefits of generative AI is that it mitigates the need for time-intensive chatbot training. To take advantage of this, launch generative AI across a small section of your website to get a sense of what your customers are asking and why. From there, you can gather useful data to create conversational flows that complement your generative responses.
- 3. Build intents to boost efficiency: Once you've got a better understanding of what your customers are asking, you can bring in pre-written intents to help steer the conversation. These might take the form of pre-scripted responses or suggestion chip buttons. You can also use intent-based responses to collect customer information and provide fulfillment information order tracking, for example.
- 4. **Analyze customer questions:** Closely examine real customer questions, gradually add key intents and suggestion chips over time, and double down on proven and often-used intents so you can build streamlined paths to resolution. Over time, this will make each chatbot conversation faster, more efficient, and more enjoyable for the end customer too.
- 5. **Insert agent transfer options:** To fully safeguard your AI customer service experience, offer clear escalation options for your customers to transfer to a human chat agent. A smooth hand-off process maintains a positive customer experience and covers any gaps in the chatbot's capabilities.

As you can see, the best way to deliver personalized, instant, and accurate self-service via generative AI is to pair it with a strategic approach to intent-based chatbot design. Using these two elements in tandem means you'll be much better equipped to launch a generative AI chatbot that increases operational efficiency and improves the customer experience.

Felix Winstone Co-founder & CEO, Talkative



BUSINESS ISSUE #2: UPTAKE AND EFFECTIVENESS OF WEB SELF-SERVICE IS LOWER THAN DESIRED

Many current self-service systems are inflexible and structured rigidly in their information flow, handling simple, unambiguous service requests by customers (such as account balances). Generally speaking, these are very successful at delivering this information, and customers will often choose a familiar and effective method of handling the simplest enquiries.

However, historical interaction volume information shows that the number of live calls received by contact center remains steady: although the contact center is the primary channel choice for only around one-third of customers, almost two-thirds of interactions with the business still come via live telephony. This suggests that the various methods of using self-service and the supporting knowledge base still have a very long way to go before customers rate them as highly for effectiveness and timeliness as they do the traditional contact center.

New channels such as social media, email and web chat have grown rapidly in popularity, yet the large majority of interactions involving the former two channels still require a customer to make a request to a human agent. The use of chatbots has increased hugely in the past few years as shown later in this report.

While web chat, social media interactions and emails have somewhat lower costs than telephone calls, the differential between these is far smaller than between live and automated service, offering cost incentives to move interactions that do not have to be handled by live agents onto an automated channel.

Channel	Mean	1st quartile	Median	3rd quartile
Phone	\$6.91	\$8.38	\$7.25	\$4.00
Email	\$5.13	\$6.00	\$4.00	\$1.50
Web chat	\$5.36	\$7.75	\$6.00	\$3.00
Social media	\$5.50	\$8.00	\$5.00	\$2.50
IVR	с. 30-70с	-	-	-
Web self-service	c. 10-15c	-	-	-

Figure 6: Cost per inbound interaction



However, despite the widely acknowledged desire to move live interactions to automated channels, web self-service is not as successful as it could be.

Although 37% of survey respondents state that fewer than 10% of customers have tried to resolve their issues online before calling the contact center, 22% state that more than 1 in 4 calls come from people who have failed to complete their objective on the website first and who may approach the call in a state of frustration.

Figure 7: Proportion of callers that have tried to answer own queries through web self-service before calling





85% of respondents agreed or strongly agreed that customers escalate their query from the web to the phone due to a complex issue requiring a live agent to complete successfully.

88% of respondents also felt that customers wanted the reassurance that a live agent brings to a conversation, which is an increase from previous years, suggesting that customers are not yet fully confident about using self-service.

65% stated that the functionality that the customer calling in required was not available online, but interestingly, 62% stated that they received calls about issues that could have been resolved online, but that customers were unable or unwilling to do so.

28% of this year's respondents believed to some extent that lack of website security authentication was an issue causing unnecessary inbound calls.



Figure 8: Why do customers move from web self-service to live telephony?

The use case for AI-enabled chatbots to help with web self-service is very clear: there are a very significant proportion of live calls that could be handled through web self-service if the customer were confident they could do so, and that the automation solution was able to handle the type of requests being given.



Clearly, the main issue to address here is that many customers – rightly or wrongly – feel that their issue is too complex to be resolved through a speaking with a chatbot or resolving it themselves elsewhere on the website. In some cases, this will be true and there is nothing to be gained by insisting that even the cleverest chatbots can solve every enquiry.

Yet even a relatively small increase in chatbot sophistication can bring more complex enquiries into play where self-service is concerned.

Conversational AI encourages the site visitor to engage with them using natural language, rather than keywords. Many applications now offer multiple languages, encouraging customers to at least try to resolve their issue online even if the website is not in their native language, increasing the possibility that bots can help.

Virtual agents parse, analyze and search for the answer deemed to be most suitable, returning this to the customer instantly. Many virtual agent applications will allow customers to give all sorts of information in any order, and either work with what it has been given, or ask the user for more detail about what they actually meant.

Sophisticated chatbot applications look for the actual intent behind the customer's question, trying to deliver a single correct answer (or at least a relatively small number of possible answers), rather than a list of dozens of potential answers that may contain a keyword. It may also try to exceed their brief by providing a list of related questions and answers to the original question, using machine learning and generative AI to predict what the next question may be and provide this answer as well.

The understanding of the context of what the customer is asking means the result can be more akin to that of an empathetic human who also has had access to what the customer has been trying to do. For example, if asked "When can I expect my delivery?", the context and the required answer will be different depending on whether the customer has placed an order and is enquiring about its status, or has only a hypothetical interest in turnaround times in case they decide to place an order.

Through 'listening' to what the customers actually say – perhaps through a mixture of large quantities of audio and text – the initial set-up configuration can achieve a good accuracy rate, which really benefits over time as a positive feedback loop is established. Solutions that gather and differentiate customer requests and results from multiple channels, noting the difference between them, have an even better success rate.

When the chatbot has low confidence that it has returned the correct result, it is able to escalate the customers query seamlessly to a live chat agent, who then has access to the self-service session history, enabling a greater chance of a successful resolution without repetition. (It is generally considered best practice that escalations to real agents are not hidden from customers). The eventual correct response can be fed back to the automated virtual agent (and the knowledge base underlying it), which will make it more likely that future similar requests can be handled successfully through chatbots.



Businesses should be aware that while the sophistication and capabilities of chatbot-type applications is varied, customers may not realize this and not even attempt to engage with the chatbot as they are used to basic rules-based applications.

Additionally, having been unconsciously trained over the years to provide their queries in a way which standard search functionality is more likely to be able to handle (for example, a small number of specific keywords), customers must be encouraged and educated to use natural language queries in order for virtual agents to be able to deliver to their full potential.

Implemented successfully, AI-enabled chatbots can provide a great deal more functionality and assistance than rules-based chatbots, going some way to addressing the main reason customers abandon the website to use telephony: that their issue is too complex.

Chatbots can also be used to address one of the other main reasons for channel migration: that the information and functionality is available on the website, but that the customer cannot find or use it.

Virtual agents can identify the reason for the customer query, and direct them to the correct part of the website, providing advice, links and ongoing support as needed.

Improving the sophistication and complexity of the issues that a chatbot can resolve will certainly help to deflect unnecessary live calls, but we should also consider the customer's emotion and experience in this. 88% of businesses agreed that one of the main reasons for moving to telephony was that the customer wants the reassurance of talking to someone.

While chatbots can be given 'personalities' and avatars, the general rule of current usage seems to be that bots are shown to be bots, and are not pretending to be human. It is debatable whether this will change in future as mimicry of human behavior and language further improves and the interactions become more convincing, but one way in which the chatbot can give reassurance is by gathering the entire conversation and generating a summary in real-time where the customer can see exactly what has been done. If the customer is happy with the outcome and conclusions, this can then be emailed to the customer and assurances made that this has been kept on their file in case of any further issues or gueries further down the line.

This will encourage customers to use chatbots again, and reassure them that the organization understands and acts appropriately regardless of the channel used.





The Office Gurus Uses Call Driver Reports to Improve CX and Efficiency

Challenge

A BPO servicing a customer care operation for a major home improvement retail company. The operation included multiple inbound gates covering a diverse range of products. The BPO noticed an increase in average handle time but didn't understand why or how to solve it.

Solution

BPO used speech analytics to review all the calls to find commonalities in calls that resulted in lower AHT. They were able to identify that, in calls where agents initiated the conversation by asking the customer for their product ID, average handle time was significantly reduced. They also uncovered friendly openers such as, "How are you today" that led to higher AHT. They created new scripts that guided agents with this best practice and were able to leverage data to reinforce its benefits during coaching sessions.

Results

- 1.28 minutes reduction in average handle time in just 4 weeks.
- 63% increase in script adherence.
- \$170,000 in approximate annual savings for the client.

"Before SpeechIQ[®], our quality assurance strategy was to monitor as many interactions as we could! This past year, we made the concerted effort to dedicate resources in our Quality Assurance department to speech analytics. SpeechIQ[®] allows us to approach our quality assurance in a very targeted fashion and on a broad scale. We have improved efficiency metrics on multiple inbound programs by utilizing SpeechIQ[®] insights to help identify what drives hold time and talk time. The automated scorecards have allowed us to feel confident our QA Scores are not skewed due to sample size. It's been a game-changer for us, and certainly, our clients are thankful!" JAIMIE BELL - VP Client Solutions, The Office Gurus



Royal Caribbean Uses Call Driver Reports to Improve CX and Efficiency

Challenge

Understanding the reasons customers are calling is a vital part of Royal Caribbean's operations. It influences their call flow, training, promotions, website, problem resolution, and communications—all to create a better customer experience. Capturing the main call driver required agents to open an application and select from a drop-down menu with more than 300 options. Accuracy was less than 40% when tested.

Solution

Royal used SpeechlQ[®]'s granular call driver functionality to not only understand the primary reason customers were calling, but also to capture all the additional intents during any given call. They were able to filter this by contact center, date range, skill group, agent, and more to create valuable reports and insights.

Results

The accuracy of the primary call driver report is approximately 90%, vs. under 40% by agents. This enabled them to automate call dispositioning, saving more than 20 seconds of post-call activity per call, and hundreds of thousands of dollars. The reports are sent to several areas of the company throughout the day. The CEO cited speech analytics as one of their key initiatives for the year on an analyst call.


BUSINESS ISSUE #3: VOICE SELF-SERVICE IS RIGID AND DIFFICULT TO USE

A typical self-service IVR solution works on the assumption that the majority of customer enquiries can be solved by offering a limited number of solutions or options. This works well in cases where the caller has a simple request (e.g. speak to a sales agent or get a balance update) but often fails where there is a complex requirement.

Banks have commented that analysis of speech recognition-driven calls shows that customers can ask for the same information in many hundreds of different ways, which throws up significant problems for non-AI speech recognition that looks for keywords. Although touchtone IVR reduces the number of options and thus ambiguity, it is by its nature only useful in a limited number of calls and options.

Of those contact centers offering telephony self-service, a mean average of 26% are handled entirely by self-service without requiring an agent.

	Proportion of calls handled entirely through self-service <u>if offered</u>
1 st quartile	44%
Median	15%
3 rd quartile	5%
Mean	26%

Figure 9: Overall proportion of calls handled entirely through self-service (only in respondents which offer telephony self-service)

Even amongst those respondents for whom telephony self-service is a vital part of the customer contact strategy, it's no use trying to shift every customer service interaction onto telephony self-service, as if customers don't want to use IVR, they will "zero-out" (press 0 for a live agent, or try to find a similar shortcut).

If callers agree to try a company's self-service system rather than insisting upon talking to an agent, there is an implied contract that if the self-service session is unsuitable, the caller should be allowed to speak with an agent. Few things frustrate callers more than being hectored into using an unhelpful and irrelevant self-service system, and if businesses don't offer a live agent option to an irate and frustrated caller, they won't need to worry about providing customer service to them in the future as they'll have gone elsewhere.

Overall, a mean average of 32% of calls that go into the self-service option are "zeroed-out": instances where the customer decides that they in fact wish to speak with an operator, which is growing each year.



There is a broadly positive correlation between the size of the contact center and the proportion of selfservice sessions that are abandoned in favor of speaking to an agent: the larger the contact center, the more often customers 'zero out'.

One possible reason for this might be that larger operations are trying to do too much with their selfservice. There is some evidence to suggest that this is the case, as it is very noticeable that respondents from larger organizations tend to have far more options in the auto-attendant functionality of their IVR solution, and this tendency to offer a great deal of functionality and options may well also apply to IVR's self-service functionality as well. Overly complex or long-winded IVR functionality will tend to encourage session abandonment.



Figure 10: Reasons for abandoning telephony self-service sessions

76% of business survey respondents agreed that customers abandoned self-service sessions because the self-service function simply does not offer what the customers want. While this at first glance may appear negative, it is the case that even in the most commoditized and transaction-driven environments a substantial proportion of customers will want to speak to a person, either because the system does not allow them to do what they want, there is a complicating factor involved, or simply that they wish reassurance or have multiple questions.



In such circumstances, it is the customer's choice to abandon the session, and this does not have to be a particularly negative experience as long as a clear exit path that leads to a live agent is marked early in the process. Situations where businesses hide their agents from customers, making them go around in IVR loops are the ones that give all telephony self-service a bad name.

59% of respondents agree that having too many options presented to customers is a major reason for them seeking human assistance. It is noticeable that 53% of respondents agree that the customer simply does not trust the system, preferring to have human reassurance that the request they have made has been carried out, or the information they are looking for is actually correct.

Of those using automated speech recognition, 38% of respondents agree that speech recognition is unpopular with customers due to lack of accuracy and user-friendliness. While this is still too high, it is a major improvement on past years, and it may be that customers are gaining confidence in how to use the system after many years of struggling. As customers continue to be encouraged to use natural language (both by successful interactions with corporate self-service applications, but also through digital virtual assistants such as Siri and Alexa), this issue should further decline.

Despite the wider and more powerful functionality that speech recognition – whether AI-enabled or not – gives to an IVR system, significant inhibitors are present. It is generally acknowledged that speech recognition can be considerably more expensive to implement than DTMF IVR, and is also likely to require significant, highly paid in-house resource to fine-tune and operate it going forward.

Some solution providers note that the majority of businesses' interest in moving from DTMF to speech recognition comes when the existing telephony self-service legacy system is approaching end-of-life.

The success or otherwise of speech-based IVRs is very affected by how callers are encouraged to use the service. It has been the case that some speech implementations have actually made life more difficult for the customer, who may not have the confidence that the system will understand their natural language request and provide very short, one-word answers in the same way that some customers use keywords when interacting with chatbots.

If nothing is given in the way of prompts or examples, callers may give too little or too much information as they are unsure of the sophistication or capabilities of the system, and this may be a reason for high self-service abandonment rates. Using prompts such as "describe in a few words why you are calling us, for example 'to start a new mortgage application'" can be extremely useful in setting ground rules for the successful use of a more sophisticated voicebot self-service application.

It is not just self-service that AI-enabled voicebots can help with: IVR is very often used for routing calls, but despite being in place for decades, this functionality is still often sub-optimal.

For many customers, IVR is seen as a way for the business to put up a barrier between them, involving a long and tortuous path before actually getting to speak with someone. Yet an IVR session should be used to capture information about the customer's identity and requirements that allows a business to provide an answer or route the call to someone who can actually help, rather than taking pot luck by dropping the call on the next agent available.



The IVR experience will often begin with a generic welcome announcement before offering various options for the customer to choose with a DTMF keypad (the vast majority of IVR is carried out with DMTF rather than speech recognition).

The audio-only nature of DTMF IVR places limitations upon how user-friendly the experience can be for a customer. There has always been a trade-off required between functionality and usability, which manifests itself in the number of menu options and levels that made available within the IVR system. The greater the functionality, the longer the announcements and the worse the customer frustration.

Looking at the number of levels used on a DTMF IVR (i.e. how many key-presses a caller must make to reach their destination), only 11% of respondents keep it simple with a single-level of options, e.g. "Press 1 for Sales; 2 for Service; 3 for Accounts".

31% of large operations present a possible four or more routing menu levels to their customers, a level of granularity that must appear daunting to their customer base, and even 25% of small contact center respondents report doing the same.



Figure 11: DTMF IVR routing menu levels, by contact center size



It is not just the number of levels in a menu that can frustrate customers, but also the overall number of options within each level. As the customer cannot see what the options are, but has to listen to each, it can be a very frustrating experience, and one which the movement to visual channels such as web self-service or visual IVR via a smartphone will go a long way towards alleviating.

Respondents report a median of between 6 and 7 options, which can still be a considerable number for a caller to listen to, especially if their preferred choice is the last one in line.

Logically, larger contact centers will tend to support larger businesses, which usually have more departments, offer a greater level of segmentation and have more products and services available to customers. Consequently, there are on average many more menu choices offered in the phone menu of medium and large contact centers, with more than half of respondents from large operations reporting that they offer seven or more routing options to their customers.



Figure 12: DTMF IVR total routing options, by contact center size



The report has shown that there are two main business issues around IVR: self-service is not as effective as it could be, and call routing is a painful (and sometimes ineffective) experience for the customer.

Al-enabled voicebots can provide a solution to both of these issues. A voicebot can be viewed as a chatbot that customers communicate with through voice rather than typed text. It needs the capability to handle natural language, to use artificial intelligence to determine intent and provide solutions, and to convert speech to text and back again.

Definitions differ, but whereas an IVR (whether speech-enabled or not) is restricted by programming to achieve outcomes based on specific patterns and inputs, an AI-enabled voicebot can have conversations with customers to determine even multiple intents and deliver a far wider range of personalized information and services. Crucially, it can learn from experience.

Advantages and use cases for voicebots include:

- Cost reduction a typical self-service voicebot interaction costs around 30-70c per call, compared to almost \$7 for a live agent
- By asking questions and understanding the content and the context of what the customer requires, call routing can be far more quick and effective than touchtone IVR or keyword-driven automated speech recognition. In some cases, it is possible to turn a routing request into a self-service session, avoiding the need for a live agent at all
- Providing 24/7 service in multiple languages
- Create far wider opportunities for extending self-service capabilities through greater sophistication and understanding of the customer's intent
- Taking pressure off agents, particularly in times of crisis or volume surges
- PCI DSS compliance can be easier, voicebots can handle card payments rather than needing agents to do this, without customers having to type in numbers on a keypad
- Inbound and outbound activity can be linked to provide superior customer service: for example, an outbound SMS appointment reminder may initiate a change request from the customer which can be handled by a voicebot
- Encouraging customers to use natural language generates large amounts of data that can be used to further train AI models
- Voicebots can be used for outbound work as well, such as debt collection, reminders and surveys
- Personalizing the voicebot allows greeting by name, and a change of voice / speaking style depending on customer preference. Customer identity verification is also possible (see next section of the report).



While CTI-like screen popping is useful for cutting time from the early part of a call, the insight that this functionality provides is often limited to the customer's name and a general idea about why they are calling.

Al-enabled voicebots offer instantaneous gathering and assessment of data from multiple sources to occur even before the call has been routed, which allows accurate prioritization and delivery of the call if a live agent is needed, or initiate a self-service session if appropriate.

For example, a voicebot working in an airline contact center may judge a call to be urgent if the caller:

- Has booked a flight for this day
- Rarely calls the contact center, preferring to use self-service
- Is a frequent flier
- Is calling from a mobile phone rather than a landline
- Shares a similar profile with other customers who only tend to call for very urgent reasons.

In such a case, the AI may consider that there is a likelihood that the call is directly related to the flight that is happening today (e.g. there's a danger of missing the flight and the customer may need to rebook), and after listening to the customer's (possibly anxious and stressed) request, can either help through self-service or move the call to the front of the queue, routing it to an agent experienced in changing flights and whose communication style suits the situation and customer profile.



BUSINESS ISSUE #4: CUSTOMER AUTHENTICATION COSTS TOO MUCH

Customer security processes are about two factors: are you who you say you are, and are you allowed to do what you are trying to do?

Industry-wide, a mean average of 65% of US inbound calls are stated to require caller identity verification, amongst the highest on record.

89% of respondents who authenticate identity do so through human means, taking an average of 46 seconds to do so.



Figure 13: Caller identity authentication methods

NB: totals may be more than 100% e.g. all calls may be authenticated by IVR, with some of these then requiring agent checks.

Over 10% of survey respondents use IVR or speech recognition, but many of these also use the agent to double-check in many instances once the call is passed through, wasting the caller's time and increasing the contact center's costs.

Customer authentication not only costs businesses money, but also impacts negatively on agent engagement: an agent taking 80 calls per day may spend around 45 minutes of an eight-hour shift doing the mundane and repetitive task of taking customers through security.



Although in-call efficiency has improved, identity verification is slower than it has ever been: over the past decade, our surveys have found consistently that around 60%-70% of calls require identity checks, which take considerably longer due to more stringent testing (a rise in the length of authentication of over 90% since 2010).

The unnecessary cost of caller authentication

Using figures from this report and other ContactBabel research, it is possible to estimate the industrywide cost of customer identification authentication using an agent. Please note that as respondents change each year, this figure is an indicative estimate based on this year's survey and should be read as such. We have assumed that only service-related calls for existing customers will require authentication.

65% of all calls require a security and identification process to be completed first. This year, 89% of calls were reported to be authenticated by agents. On average, it takes 46 seconds to go through security. Using these statistics, it is possible to estimate how much US contact centers spend each year on screening customers by using agents.

Inbound calls per year (handled by agents): 27.1bn³

Proportion of inbound calls that require security and identification checks: 65%

Average length of agent-handled security and identification check: 46 seconds

Average call duration: 7m 22s (therefore 10.4% of the call is ID&V)

Mean average cost per inbound call: \$6.91

Cost of time spent on agent-handled security and identification check: 71.9c per call

Overall cost of agent-handled security and identification checking: **\$12.7bn per year.**

Although not contact center-related, it is worth noting that at large scale, the cost of sending one-time passwords (OTPs) by SMS is considerable: it is estimated that the total cost of sending OTPs is \$5bn per year which is a major cost particularly for many large banks. Added to this, customer experience is impacted as it can take several minutes for an SMS or email to be received and the code entered, and it is not always convenient for customers to do this.

³ ContactBabel, <u>"US Contact Centers 2022-2026: The State of the Industry"</u>



While dedicated authentication solutions such as voice biometrics and call signaling analysis are increasingly being used, these are expensive and focused mainly on large businesses such as banks where fraud reduction is a key priority.

For many businesses, having a voicebot rather than an agent take customers through security will reduce costs while providing a similar level of security, and has real potential to cut costs and improve agent morale.

The security process remains the same as if it were a live agent taking these details, with the voicebot simply taking their place. If the voicebot notices undue levels of stress or anxiety, they can flag the call to the agent as potentially fraudulent for further security checks.



IMPLEMENTATION, SUCCESS AND PITFALLS

It's important for businesses to understand that if they're not already using AI, then they haven't already missed the boat, and that even with unlimited budget and resource, there will still be many customer service activities that are more appropriate for a live agent to do.

For first-time AI deployments, the focus should be on the solution delivering a high-quality solution to a relatively small and clearly defined business process or issue, rather than taking on more complicated situations, even if there is a potentially higher benefit.

In many cases, it might be appropriate to start with a self-service-focused chatbot or voicebot project, and then look to roll out AI to other parts of the customer journey including call routing, back-office processing, analytics and agent assistance.



OceanFirst Bank Deploys AI for Collaborative Intelligence

OceanFirst Bank is a growth oriented, community-focused financial services organization. Headquartered in New Jersey, this regional bank offers online and mobile banking, savings and checking accounts, mortgage loans, debit cards, commercial loans, cash management, and trust and asset management. Consistent attention to its customers' diverse use cases gives OceanFirst a community bank feel that helps build connections and trust. Contact centers can play a critical role in driving community-focused customer service, and OceanFirst's call center prioritizes this approach.

"We're not your typical contact center," explains OceanFirst Customer Care Centre Manager Brenda Gleeson. "We support the branches with many asks, and we work very closely with each back-office department as well as each front-office department."

As the bank expanded through organic growth and acquisitions, it began to outgrow its legacy call center system. Its previous contact center provider had limited functionality, lacked routing and AI capabilities, provided poor agent visibility, and offered limited training. All calls — averaging more than 40,000 a month — flooded into a general queue for the next available agent without regard for expertise or skill, causing long handle times. OceanFirst knew it was time to find a contact center solution that could be agile, innovative, and a partner in cultivating community. It wanted to maintain the personal touch of a small-scale bank while achieving the flexibility and convenience of a cloud-based contact center. OceanFirst chose Five9 due to its product scalability and ability for account teams to customize.

Leveraging AI for Collaborative Intelligence Ocean

First saw the importance of what <u>Five9 Agent Assist</u> could offer when exploring the use of AI functionality. It uses Agent Assist to provide agents with real-time coaching, guidance, and reminders for the next best action. Guidance cards include knowledge base articles that surface according to call intent to help complex requests and provide relevant information during the call. With real-time call transcripts, agents no longer have to take notes that would drag focus away from the customer. Instead, agents can reference the transcript if they miss any part of the conversation without asking customers to repeat themselves.

Guidance cards also coach agents to provide customers with information about using self-service for faster resolution in the future. For example, when a customer calls in to check their balance, the agent is prompted to offer telephone banking steps for future inquiries. Or, if a customer calls to say they'll be traveling, the agent receives a link to walk through that request as well as a prompt to suggest using the bank's mobile app. This helps deflect future calls for common queries to self-service. With access to more than 60 guidance cards, new agents leverage Agent Assist in their real-time training for facilitating customer solutions. *"Agent Assist helped with our onboarding and having the ability to train agents to meet certain skills rather than overwhelming them with a ton of information all at once,"* says OceanFirst Customer Care Implementation Specialist Mallorie Murphy. *"In turn, this really helped with performance and retention."*

Since deploying Agent Assist, OceanFirst has been able to onboard agents faster, provide consistent and new information to all agents at the same time, and access transcripts for 100% of real-time call centre interactions.

Improving Employee Engagement

OceanFirst saw additional benefits after deploying Five9. Skills-based routing now directs calls to the right agents, which has simplified the entire training, onboarding, and evaluation process. This enables OceanFirst to provide agents with targeted training based on their specific skill sets.

With <u>Five9 Workforce Optimization</u>, OceanFirst has straightforward scheduling and management functionality. Previously, the bank relied on spreadsheets as its primary scheduling system. Now, <u>Five9 Workforce Management (WFM)</u> streamlines all schedules. Agents can submit PTO requests online through WFM and access their work schedules weeks in advance thanks to automated workflow scheduling. Improved scheduling functionality enables agents to organize both their work and personal lives while taking pressure off supervisors.

<u>Five9 Quality Management</u> enhances the call review process with a greater capacity for screen capture, an important tool the bank uses to measure the quality of services that agents provide customers. *"Quality Management is huge for us — listening to customer calls, grading agents, and getting feedback to those agents so they can improve,"* explains OceanFirst Principal Business Analyst Kevin Sweeney.

Leveraging <u>Five9 Interaction Analytics</u> features and AI benefits, OceanFirst identifies areas of improvement by evaluating calls using keywords spoken by agents and customers. *"Prior to Five9, we didn't have the option to focus on certain calls and campaigns. We had to pick and audit random calls without being able to filter out what we needed to look at," explains Murphy. "With Interaction Analytics, we can refine searches and help coach our agents and increase productivity."*



IMPLEMENTATION: CHATBOTS, VOICEBOTS & CONVERSATIONAL AI

Apart from the dangers associated with an overly complex initial AI project, scale is also an issue to consider. To begin with, businesses may consider it wise to limit the number of concurrent customer users that AI supports (i.e. dozens rather than hundreds of concurrent users), in order to learn what works and what needs improvement in each use case, and to optimize processing performance by providing the right amount of processing capacity.

Over time, machine learning tends to require less processor power and running a relatively small scale Al implementation for a few months will provide a more informed view of what full-scale usage of Al will involve, meaning that the right amount (and cost) of processing power can be established.

If you're considering implementing AI, there are some questions that you should ask yourself first:

- Is there a specific pain point or issue within the operation that needs to be addressed? e.g. large numbers of simple calls about a small number of issues
- How does this affect CX, and how would the customer like this to be improved?
- Are there solutions available that have successfully addressed these issues already?
- How quickly can this be implemented, and what initial and ongoing resource will actually be required to make it run successfully?
- What upheaval would it create within the existing operation? What effect does it have on the customer experience?
- Are the improvements measurable? What are the cost impacts?
- Is there a sufficient volume of clean data in order to train an AI system effectively?
- Will infrastructure or existing platform need to be replaced?
- Is AI likely to be the most appropriate way of dealing with this issue?

It is likely that some senior decision-makers within the enterprise have an unrealistic expectation of how AI can help within the CX environment. It is important that the boundaries of the project are clearly understood, with relevant baseline metrics captured before the project, and clear and achievable outcomes signposted and agreed so that the eventual level of success of the project can be clearly understood.

Many contact centers may consider a limited, low-risk use case which can be implemented quickly and relatively cheaply in order to demonstrate a quick win and assert the viability of AI within a customer contact operation. For example, increasing the number of self-service interactions through improved AI-enabled website guidance in certain defined cases is an example of a project which has a clear and easily measured metric which translates directly into call and cost reduction.



Having said this, it is important for contact centers not to sell this to high-level management as being an opportunity to reduce headcount, as it is unlikely that this will be the outcome from any AI project, certainly in the short-to-medium term. It may be better for the project to be viewed as improving CX through providing customers with an alternative to a frustrating web browsing experience, ending with an unnecessary and unwanted live call which then impacts on queue times and call abandonment rates.

While it is important for the initial AI implementation to focus on achieving success within its own terms, it is also important that this is not seen as a tactical point solution with a single end in sight. For example, while the initial implementation may be focused on increasing the effectiveness of self-service in a defined area, the longer term view may be to roll out AI into the agent's sphere, assisting them while on live calls.

As such, a roadmap of logically linked business cases can help to establish a long-term vision which can be shared with non-operational senior personnel to help them understand the strategic use of AI across the customer-facing parts of the business.

For example, a simple yet strategic rollout of AI may look similar to the following:

- Use a virtual assistant / chatbot to improve the take-up of knowledge held within the FAQ database, by improving the search mechanism and offering a two-way conversation interface in order to provide more accurate answers. Capture the phrases used by customers in existing human web chat sessions to understand the questions they will ask your chatbot
- Place this virtual assistant upon the agent desktop in order to provide them with more knowledgeable potential answers within the call
- Meet customer requests over voice and text through the use of natural language processing, in order to assess customer intent, and provide answers or optimal routing strategies
- Improve efficiency, consistency and effectiveness of back office processes connected with the contact center through the use of robotic process automation
- Deploy analytical AI in order to discover patterns of data relevant to the business that would otherwise not be identified.

Once the process, objectives and outcome are clearly defined, the selection of a vendor and solution can then be approached. In a rapidly growing and heavily hyped market sector such as AI, it can be difficult to compare vendors with like-for-like solutions.

For example, in the case of chatbots, on the one hand these can be rule-based, have limited conversational capability and are unable to learn; on the other, they may use natural language processing, engage with customers in order to ask further questions to determine intent, and be capable of self-improvement. The development time, resource and cost associated with each of these types of



chatbot are very different, and businesses must decide whether they are looking for a quick win, or whether they have a definite long-term AI strategy in mind.

Businesses should also consider the type of developer and implementation model that's most appropriate: some self-service chatbots can be based on off-the-shelf software which is then customized and implemented by an in-house development team, whereas some businesses may prefer to bring in third-party developers with greater experience in AI implementation. The rate of change within this technology sector is very high, so implementations that are measured in a handful of months rather than longer would seem to make more sense at this point.

At the request for proposal (RFP) stage, businesses may consider asking potential suppliers:

- What are the current capabilities of your AI solution and what does your product roadmap look like?
- How do you propose escalating interactions to live agents if the AI solution cannot handle it?
- What metrics do you propose using in order to judge the success of an AI implementation?
- What does the timeline of a successful implementation look like? Do you have a reference site?
- How do you propose to train the AI, and what will our training data need to look like?
- How do you propose to integrate AI with our existing systems, and how much customization will be needed?

At the initial stage of the implementation process, datasets that the AI models will be learning from must be analyzed, cleansed and curated to provide a solid basis for the AI solution to learn from. Vendors will have dedicated examples of neural networks that work for various business cases such as providing answers to queries or estimating the time taken for a process to be completed. These can be used as a starting point for training the AI model, and to enable it to start making predictions of its own.

While each vendor will have their own framework and architecture, they are likely to follow a similar path involving input, interpretation, action and improvement. Input is gathered by the system – often from a customer – and if necessary is then translated into a format which the system can understand (e.g. through speech-to-text or OCR). Once the data are converted, the AI looks for the customer intent behind the input using NLP as well as other metadata such as location or customer history. Once the intent has been decided with a certain level of confidence, various solutions are considered and presented to the customer. Finally, the loop is closed through gathering feedback about the success or otherwise of the answer, which is then taken into account in future interactions, with the AI learning what works best.

In theory, despite the often onerous effort involved in creating a clean pool of data, the implementation of a virtual assistant or chatbot should not have to change the existing IVR or web chat infrastructure materially, as the AI agent is treated as just another user of this technology.



The more data that the AI has to train on, the more likely it is to succeed. As machine learning works through pattern recognition, this can include metadata and context which may seem somewhat peripheral to the process, but there are likely to be patterns that have not been recognized by human users. This allows the AI model to understand customer intent and also to be able to discern which customers need to be treated in a way outside of the ordinary (e.g. in an emergency situation, if the customer is likely to defect, or if they have contacted the business multiple times in a short timeframe). Analyzing the use of existing data shows the ways in which customers want to express themselves.

As with any IT project, testing is key to success but with AI implementations this is even more important. Most IT systems work on an input-processing-output basis, where the point of the implementation is that the same thing happens every time, reliably and predictably. As the processing element of AI involves elements of learning (and hopefully improvement), the output can change over time. This does not always end optimally: Microsoft's Tay⁴ is only one example where the AI displayed inappropriate and offensive responses after interacting with users. Businesses should be aware that AI solutions, especially in the early stages, may require very close supervision and possibly intervention. Dedicated chatbot testing vendors offer services to make sure the chatbot is working properly before putting it into a live environment.

Measuring the performance and success of an implementation is always vital, but never more so when it is for a highly anticipated and poorly understood solution such as AI. There is likely to be far greater interest in and pressure from the higher echelons of the business than is the case for most contact center technology implementations, and thoroughly understanding the outcome of the initial implementation is vital.

There is no baseline set of metrics that every AI implementation should be measured against, although in the widest sense, the impact upon customer experience, agent experience, cost and operational benchmarking should all be considered. Of course, it also depends on the area of the contact center business processes that implementation is aimed at improving.

Some examples of AI-related metrics around self-service include:

- volume and success rate of successful chatbot / voicebot interactions, segmented by type of interaction
- customer satisfaction by self-service segment (particularly useful for comparing AI-enabled selfservice with scripted self-service applications such as rules-based chatbots)
- proportion of self-service attempts that are handed off to agents, and following from this, the proportion of these which are handled by a single agent (showing the efficiency and accuracy of routing and the collection of relevant information in the initial self-service session)
- length of self-service session (this is related to customer effort, which influences CX)
- change in inbound call volumes.

⁴ <u>https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Tay (bot)</u>



INITIAL ACTIONS IN AN AI PROJECT

While each AI project is different, businesses may wish to consider following these initial steps:

- 1. Review operations, categorize them and if possible, quantify the cost, complexity, value and volume of each type of interaction to determine which are most suitable for automation. Use topic modelling to consider the subjects most under discussion as well as their relative complexity. Agents are likely to have a good idea of the types of questions that they are frequently asked, and which ones are most easily automated, so they should be included in this phase. AI, RPA and analytics can also be used in the discovery phase of the project to identify topics, processes and bottlenecks which may be causing excessive cost and customer effort
- 2. Consider whether processes and queries can be handled by a simple 'if x then y' type of rule which can be programmed and always adheres to the workflow, or whether customer intent and requirement is likely to be more complex, and therefore more suitable for AI
- 3. Develop AI user cases for specific processes and interactions, including giving each bot a 'job description'. Although starting small is often a good idea, have a roadmap that doesn't constrain you to follow any early decisions
- 4. Fully understand the necessary underlying workflows, systems, data and processes which support this function and which are supported by the action of the bot
- 5. Develop a clean pool of data for the AI to learn from, being closely supervised by human experts
- 6. Companies using voice data will of course need to implement speech recognition, as using text transcripts for analysis is far easier and more powerful than using audio data. This will allow a wide variety of applications, such as search, scoring of agent behavior, monitoring and QA of agents, and predictive capabilities (e.g. predicted NPS or first-contact resolution) which are based on large quantities of calls rather than just a handful
- 7. Make sure that there is a reliable path to a live agent if escalation is needed, including providing the context and history of the interaction so far
- 8. Monitor, track and report on the success of the bot as if it were an agent, and continually look for improvements. Be aware that processes and data may change over time, so regular reviews are vital.



VOICEBOT IMPLEMENTATIONS

While a voicebot can deliver the same type of sophisticated AI-enabled functionality as chatbots, there are some extra elements to consider in implementation and usage:

Noise cancellation: the additional requirement of carrying out speech-to-text in order for the interaction to be analyzed is potentially more difficult because of background noise, but there are a number of software-based, AI-driven noise cancellation solutions available that can provide a clearer and more accurate delivery of the customer's voice. This is particularly important when capturing names, addresses, payment card details and account numbers that could then be passed onto the agent if required.

Resilience: the dependency on multiple systems – sometimes external ones – means that integration may not be entirely straightforward, with components such as speech-to-text, natural language processing and noise cancellation all having to work together seamlessly and quickly, which risks system breakdown.

System latency: users of even basic automated speech recognition have been aware for years that it is not close to the experience of speaking with a live agent, with pauses of several seconds typical as the system processes the speech before replying. Solution providers claim that it is now possible to achieve latency of around half a second with an ideal voicebot set-up, but latency is something that businesses have to consider seriously when implementing AI-enabled voice assistants.

Other considerations around voicebot implementations include:

- Voice conversations don't follow linear paths: people speaking may repeat themselves, decide to change the phrasing halfway through a sentence to make it clearer, or interrupt. These are not issues that a text-based application such as a chatbot has to cope with.
- While accent recognition has improved greatly, it is still not infallible. There is also the issue with similar- or identical-sounding words (e.g. "1 / won"; "4 / for"; "2 / to") being misunderstood by the system.
- By its nature, a voicebot cannot show customers anything, unlike a chatbot which can send a clickable link or picture to the customer. As such, voicebot implementations will generally not be as wide-ranging or ambitious in their scope as chatbots.
- Whereas a pause in a conversation with a chatbot is expected and allows the customer to consider their next statement carefully – this is not a part of spoken conversation. Customers can feel rushed to explain their issue, often sub-optimally, and can end up flustered, give the wrong information or want to start again.



- Intent detection can be more difficult with voice conversations, as people will tend to be more long-winded and include information that is not strictly relevant. There is also the necessity for systems to be able to break up multiple intents within a single utterance (e.g. "I want to book single train tickets from New York to Newark for two people, travelling tomorrow and arriving before 11am.").
- Consider the voice brand you would like to use: many voice assistants sound robotic, overly produced or do not share the same national accent as the typical customer. It may be that you decide that certain types of customer (younger / older; male / female) should be communicated with through different voice personas.
- Voicebots should be able to cope with interruptions, and keep the context of the conversation so as to be able to answer additional questions while keeping the required dialogue flow.



KNOWLEDGE MANAGEMENT

One of the most central and critical elements to a company's service capability is the knowledge base, which is vital to the accuracy and consistency of both the self-service and assisted service experiences across channels. An AI project cannot succeed unless the data it learns from is clean and deep.

For many organizations, a knowledge base started off as a list of useful documents and files, which quickly grew into a wider, less coherent collection of information sources, requiring increased levels of expert management, amendments, editing, and deletion.

However, the resources required to keep these knowledge bases up-to-date are very scarce, as the people within the business that have the right capabilities and expertise to do so also have their own jobs to do. Very quickly, what started off as a useful and highly tailored information resource mushroomed into an expensive, out-of-date and increasingly less useful collection of information of wildly varying quality. Al can assist in the management of knowledge bases by feeding back successful outcomes, and noting when the answers provided did not meet the requirement.

On an ongoing basis, feedback from agents and customers will identify gaps in the knowledge base which will need to be filled by product experts. Some knowledge bases will require full-time, dedicated resource to manage them, whereas others will rely on automated systems making dynamic changes depending on callers' and agents' requirements.

It is often the case that large businesses with many products and services to maintain will have numerous editors across many departments who can make suggestions, although it may only be a small handful of people who will verify and publish this information. Businesses may want to consider allowing experienced contact center agents to create new entries based on their communications with the customer. Understanding which documents are being used the most allows the maintenance efforts be focused on the most important areas.

While some knowledge base solution providers state that 80% of questions can be answered by 20% of content, it is each business's decision to decide how the remaining 20% of queries will be handled (but of course, even these 20% of documents will change over time as customers' requirements and the businesses' products will not stay static). Some will consider that this is a reasonable proportion to be handled by more traditional means, such as the contact center, whereas others will leverage expert internal resource, as well as customer communities and forums to fill these knowledge gaps.

It is not just the publishing of information that is vital: it is feedback on its accuracy and success from the wider user community and any automated systems which will help the business to fine-tune the knowledge base. Processes to gather this feedback should be put in place, and continually revisited to check their effectiveness, and it is possible to add successful answers to the knowledge base very quickly if a response from an agent (for example, via email or web chat) has been marked to be successful.



By their nature, knowledge bases only contain information that a company thinks is relevant to its customers, who may disagree or find the sheer volume of data to be unmanageable when searching through a company's website. Al can be used to understand what customers are doing on a website (including any web chat questions) and provide answers in context, either directly to the customer or through providing agents with the likely correct response.

One of the keys to successful knowledge management is the continual monitoring, updating and publishing of the most accurate and in-demand information. Businesses should consider setting internal service levels for the knowledge base, for example only returning documents and suggested answers that have over a specific score for relevancy, and no more than a small number of answers per enquiry.

If customers are trained to expect a self-service or virtual agent experience that returns pages and pages of documents that bear little relevance to their original query, they will very soon abandon self-service entirely. It is also vital that the information contained in the knowledge base is available consistently across all channels, whether through a virtual agent or human agent.

Al cannot succeed or learn without clean, up-to-date and accurate information. It is tempting – and certainly the easiest route – to allow knowledge to stay only in the heads of the experienced agents and supervisors, who can share this with colleagues as and when needed. However, in a remote working environment this is sub-optimal, and even the most loyal agent will eventually leave the company, taking their knowledge with them. Although building procedures and allowing the time for these agents to update the knowledge base is an extra expense and complexity, it is vital for the success of AI-enabled self-service.

It is not just the publishing of information that is vital: crowd-sourcing of answers, and feedback on accuracy and success from the wider "super-user" community will help the business to fine-tune the knowledge base and train the AI.

Much of this may be unstructured data, which the AI is capable of handling and putting into a usable format. Processes to gather this feedback should be put in place, and continually revisited to check effectiveness, and it's possible to add successful answers to the knowledge base very quickly if a response from an agent (for example, via email or web chat) has been marked to be successful, and AI is an effective method of doing this regularly and consistently.

Those who contribute timely and useful information – whether a customer or an employee – can be rewarded and recognized accordingly. People **want** to share their knowledge with others, and enabling them to do so easily is beneficial for all parties concerned. Businesses could measure the success of the knowledge management system by measuring the return on investment from call avoidance, by the rating or score given by readers of recommended articles, or through targeted customer satisfaction ratings.



END-USER QUESTION #2: WHAT DOES SETTING UP AND TRAINING AI-ENABLED CHATBOTS / VOICEBOTS ACTUALLY INVOLVE?



Setting up AI-enabled chatbots/voicebots involves defining objectives and use cases, collecting and pre-processing data, selecting, and training the AI model, integration, testing, and continuous improvement.

Traditional AI relies on structured data and predefined rules, while GenAI, like GPT, learns from vast unstructured data, requiring more computational resources for training. Traditional models trained the AI intents by humans in the loop reviewing machine-classified call utterances by simply clicking yes/no on sentence utterances generated by the ML model. GenAI models are more flexible and adaptable, capable of generating human-like responses based on context with minimum need for training phrases to optimize intent matching but require periodic retraining for optimal performance. Whichever model customers use, the goal should be to enhance customer interactions, streamline processes, and improve user satisfaction through automated conversational interfaces.



The complexity of the process will vary depending on the desired capabilities of your chatbot but a general overview of what's involved includes the following:

- **Defining the purpose:** First, you need to determine what your chatbot will do. Is it for customer service, answering FAQs, or something else? This guides the training process.
- Gathering data: You'll need an amount of text data, like conversations, emails, or documents, relevant to your chatbot's purpose. This data helps it understand language patterns and user intent.
- **Training the model:** Different AI techniques are used, like machine learning and natural language processing (NLP). NLP helps the chatbot interpret user input and generate responses. The training data is fed into the model, allowing it to "learn" from the information.
- **Testing and refinement:** Once trained, the chatbot is tested with real users or simulated conversations. This helps identify weaknesses and areas for improvement. Based on the feedback, the training data and model parameters can be adjusted for better performance.
- **Deployment and monitoring:** Finally, the trained chatbot is integrated into your platform (website, app, etc.) and goes live. However, the learning process doesn't stop. You'll need to monitor user interactions and continuously refine the chatbot with new data to ensure it remains effective and up-to-date.





With the right platform, you can build your chatbot flows, intents, AI, and widgets without coding or developer resources - often within a few hours.

Training the AI takes place via an AI Knowledge Base. Users can upload text documents and webpages to create an information repository for the platform's generative AI to answer questions from. This uploading process takes just a couple of minutes.



MAKING AI A SUCCESS AND AVOIDING PITFALLS

In any technology implementation there will be risks of failure: with AI covering a vast amount of territory and with the potential to be misunderstood by business owners, planning and expectations must be managed very carefully.

- Expectations of what the AI implementation can actually achieve must be closely managed. There may be the expectation from senior management that headcount will immediately begin to drop, but in the majority of instances this is not why AI is being implemented. Focusing on a tightly defined use case will reduce the risk of implementation delays and expecting too much, too soon from AI. However it is important not to see even a relatively modest implementation of AI as being a point solution, rather than a single strategic step.
- Al in the contact center is relatively new, and with it being so popular, there is a shortage of skills, support and resource within the industry as a whole. In-house technology departments are less likely to have capability, expertise and experience, meaning that the risk of suboptimal deployment and the requirement for third-party assistance may be higher than with other more traditional IT implementations.
- Businesses data assets must be in place before implementation of AI, as this is a technology that relies upon having large, clean pools of data that it can be trained on and learn from. Without this in place, it will be virtually impossible for any AI implementation to get close to its potential.

The preparation of data will involve having an organized, non-siloed data architecture, a consistent data vocabulary, the means of accessing this data securely and quickly, and the ability to access other pieces of relevant information (e.g. customer-related metadata) in order to include greater context. Without this, it will be more difficult for a machine learning process to train itself effectively, or for a chatbot to be able to use all of the relevant data in order to reach a correct conclusion.

- Always have a well-designed and clear path out of AI-enabled self-service to a human agent. Trapping a frustrated customer in a self-service session runs the risk not only of training them not to use self-service again, but also poisons the well for other companies using AI. This is what happened in the early days of email support: customers would try to communicate with one or two businesses via email, and when they didn't receive a response for days (or ever), they decided that the whole email support channel was unworthy of their time. It took many years to change this perception and to get them to trust the channel.
- In the AI world, knowledge management is not something that is a part-time job or that can be handled by amateurs. Consider developing more full-time, expert roles to support knowledge bases and to enable understanding of data models and flows across the entire enterprise. AI experts have to understand both data and also the real-life business / customer issues, and this resource can be difficult to find. Some businesses use 'superuser' teams of experienced agents who understand which requests are most suited to automation, and the process steps that are required for successful outcomes.



- Some vendors have predefined applications and bots which can be specific to vertical markets, but even these will need to be refined and developed over time.
- The business originally needs to identify the outcomes that are most important to them: reducing cost to serve by lowering handle times; improving CX; reducing call-backs about the same issue, etc., and the success or otherwise of these outcomes must be tracked closely to gauge ROI. Track service levels of AI processes in the same way as you would your agents.
- Discovering why customers contact your organization, and identifying repeatable, low-risk tasks that can be automated is a good way to start, particularly if the cost of handling these issues manually can be calculated. Soon, the business will have metrics on how many customers were successfully helped by AI, the cost avoided and any effect on customer satisfaction ratings, which can be shared with senior management and will help with future use cases.
- Explain to employees why you're implementing AI, how it will affect them, what it means for them in their role and how they can help. There may be concern that their jobs are going to be replaced by bots, so educating them about what the contact center of the future will look like, training them thoroughly and getting their opinion and feedback will help to get them onboard.
- Al and bots need to be entirely integrated into the tasks, flows and reporting. Choosing an approach that allows a bot to be built once and replicated across channels will save time and money, as well as standardizing the customer experience.
- There have been a lot of media scare stories about AI and robots making people unemployed. It is important to emphasize to agents that any AI implementation is about making their jobs more interesting and effective by allowing AI to handle simple and repetitive requests, as well as providing them with more of the information that they need to serve the customer more effectively.
- While agents are experts on answering customer queries, it may be too much to ask them to spend significant amounts of their time on contact curation as well. As such, businesses should consider how to incentivize power user experts (both inside and outside the enterprise) to help with knowledge management and problem resolution.

Common pitfalls from conversational AI implementations include:

- A lack of clean data
- Low quality content in the knowledge base
- Little or no feedback from whether the bots' actions are successful, or even understanding what success looks like
- Not having a smooth handoff to live agents with full context
- High maintenance requirements from continuously training AI models.



END-USER QUESTION #3: IS THERE ANYTHING THAT SUCCESSFUL AI-ENABLED CHATBOT / VOICEBOT IMPLEMENTATIONS HAVE IN COMMON? ANY PITFALLS TO AVOID?



The most successful AI chatbot implementations use a hybrid approach to CX automation, incorporating both generative AI and intent-based flows. They also use high-quality data, have the ability to hand off to human agents, and

leverage a secure system that handles problematic AI responses out of the box. This allows the focus to stay on providing an optimal customer experience without worrying about prompt structure.



Successful AI-enabled chatbot/voicebot implementations share common traits and avoid pitfalls through strategic planning and outcome-based approaches. Defining clear success metrics is crucial from the outset, aligning technology with business objectives to ensure tangible benefits.

Pitfalls include failing to establish success metrics or an AI roadmap, neglecting employee-centric AI strategies, and selecting impractical AI solutions. Cultivating a culture where humans and AI collaborate optimally is essential for maximizing performance gains. Ultimately, choosing solutions that offer practical AI, leveraging vendor expertise, and flexible deployment options are crucial to driving successful digital transformations in contact centers.



Successful AI chatbots share a winning formula. They have a clear purpose, like answering questions or generating leads. They excel at understanding natural language, thanks to powerful NLP capabilities. This, along with training on massive

amounts of data, allows them to deliver accurate and engaging responses. They also continuously learn and improve through user interaction, becoming better over time. Additionally, they offer a userfriendly interface and transparently acknowledge their limitations, directing complex issues to human agents when needed. By excelling in these core areas, AI chatbots can become powerful assets for businesses and users alike.



The most successful AI deployments start with a clear picture of what success looks like. Especially as you're getting started, avoid expansive projects with multiple variables and KPIs. Focus on activities that will result

in measurable gains that can be easily compared with pre-AI outcomes or against parallel AI pilots in A/B tests.



CURRENT AND FUTURE USAGE OF CHATBOTS, VOICEBOTS & CONVERSATIONAL AI

The main reason for the slow response rate and excessive length of web chat and especially email is that in the past there has been very little automation used in the US contact center industry. This has also meant that the cost of an email or web chat has historically been similar to that of a phone call.

Digital channels may work quite well for customers, but many businesses are not seeing the cost savings that successful automation can bring. Even now, very few emails are handled entirely by AI, although this year has seen another increase in the proportion of web chats being dealt with by AIs working alongside agents, suggesting responses which agents can then accept or amend. This way of working is most likely to be the norm in the short-term at least, with the speed of automation and the emotional intelligence of humans providing superior service at a lower cost.

It is worth noting that the proportion of web chats handled <u>entirely</u> by automation has increased from 3% in 2019 to 11% in 2023, and as shown later, this is starting to impact on the average cost of web chats. Interestingly, the UK has a higher proportion of web chats handled by automation (both entirely and partially) and has a much greater cost differential.



Figure 14: Human / AI email and web chat handling



Whereas only 15% of web chats had any automation involved in 2019, this grew to 40% by the end of 2022, mainly as a result of initial handling by automated chatbots which may then hand off to live agents where appropriate. The slight drop in 2023 is probably a statistical anomaly caused by different businesses taking part in the survey this year.

It should be noted that fully-automated AI-enabled web chat is increasing, but relatively slowly in recent years.



Figure 15: Level of automation used in web chat, 2019-23



Despite a low current use of AI across industries, there is widespread interest in implementing this solution, with 54% of respondents that do not currently use AI intending to implement it at some point, especially in larger operations and the TMT (technology, media & telecoms), retail, medical and finance sectors.







In recent years, larger operations were much more likely than sub-50 seat contact centers to have implemented some form of AI, although there had been very significant interest recently even amongst smaller operations and there is little difference in current implementation rates.

However, it is not to say that these solutions will be as powerful or sophisticated as those used in large contact centers, but there has definitely been a noticeable increase in usage.



Figure 17: Use of AI / Machine Learning, by contact center size



EXPECTED OUTCOMES

For a chatbot / voicebot implementation, what would success look like when considering the four business issues identified earlier in the report? What KPIs could be impacted, and what benefits seen?

Excessive customer wait times

Queue times are close to their historical peak, customers show no sign of leaving the voice channel and state that queue times are one of the most important drivers of CX – whether good or bad.

Al-enabled chatbots / voicebots can impact queue times by encouraging the uptake of self-service, removing pressure on the queue. While rules-based chatbots have gone some way to soaking up some of the simpler queries, Al-enabled chatbots and voicebots can add further depth and encourage self-service by understanding customers' natural language and the context of the request, and responding conversationally, including turn-taking and further exploration of customers' issues.

KPIs impacted include: average time to answer; call abandonment rate; CSAT / NPS.

Uptake and effectiveness of web self-service is lower than desired

Despite most companies encouraging web self-service, many customers will abandon a self-service session if they have complex requests that they feel only a live agent can solve, want reassurance, or cannot find the answers or functionality they need on the website.

Al-enabled chatbots can encourage customers to stay on the website by asking sensible, context-related questions rather than just following a rigid rules-based script. Interacting conversationally and understanding customers' natural language will add reassurance and confidence, and being able to break up complex requests into multiple pieces while retaining the flow of the conversation will further encourage customers to interact more deeply with the chatbot.

This is not to say that all requests can or should be handled by AI-enabled chatbots, but that a greater proportion of them can be. It will take some time for customers to realize that not all chatbots are the same, and to invest time and effort in interacting with them rather than reaching for the phone, but the trajectory is in the right direction.

KPIs impacted include: % of chat interactions successfully handled; reduction in call volumes (and improvement in the associated phone queue KPIs); CSAT with chat functionality.



Voice self-service is rigid and difficult to use

While touchtone IVR has been around for decades, it is not particularly popular with customers nor is it generally used for much more than call routing or very simple self-service. Despite this, it is a real cost-saver for businesses, with around 6-10% of all interactions being handled through voice self-service across the entire contact center industry, although these figures have been stagnant for many years.

Al-enabled voicebots can offer a deeper understanding of customer intent, helping route calls successfully without the need for customers to dig through long-winded IVR menus, and providing richer self-service functionality. Voicebots go beyond traditional speech recognition systems, which often act on keywords and tend to have a poor user experience.

The ability to understand and answer questions in multiple languages is also a strong positive point for many voicebots, which – like chatbots – respond to customers in a conversational style which can even be personalized depending on the customer and the brand they are communicating with.

KPIs impacted include: reduced voice self-service abandonment rates (zeroing-out), improved call routing (reduced call transfer rate); reduction in live call volumes (and improvement in the associated phone queue KPIs); CSAT with voice self-service functionality.

Customer authentication costs too much

At an industry-wide level, customer authentication by agents costs over \$12bn each year – around 72c per call. Quite apart from the cost, taking customers through the same security questions dozens of times each day is morale-sapping for agents, adds nothing to the customer experience and impacts negatively on queue times and call abandonment rates.

Al-enabled voicebots can carry out customer authentication just as quickly as an agent, with a much lower cost per interaction. Al-driven improvements in accent comprehension and noise cancellation mean that voicebots are able to understand more of what the customer is saying, reducing caller frustration and improving outcomes. It is possible for voicebots to gauge voice stress, sentiment and other indicators that suggest potentially fraudulent activity, and flag these to the agent for further security checks.

KPIs impacted include: reduced cost of customer authentication, reduction in call times (and improvement in the associated phone queue KPIs); improved agent morale.



The outcomes of using AI-enabled chatbots and voicebots include better customer experience as well as operational efficiencies and cost reduction.

An example of the latter is shown below where we have tracked mean average cost per phone call and web chat over a six year period.

As can be seen, phone and web chat almost converged in 2020. Phone costs have flattened very slightly after the effects of the pandemic were over, but web chat costs have diverged from that and are now dropping, despite the average length and complexity of a chat increasing. This pattern is much stronger in the UK contact center industry, where the use of chatbots is reportedly higher.

While correlation does not prove causation, this chart seems to make a case for chatbots (whether rules-based or AI-driven) impacting positively on the cost of service, as the uptake in automated chat started at around the same time.



Figure 18: Mean cost per inbound call & web chat 2018-2023



END-USER QUESTION #4: WHERE DOES THE ROI COME FROM IN AI-ENABLED CHATBOT / VOICEBOT IMPLEMENTATIONS?



The ROI comes in for Chatbot + Voice implementations when these AI systems start to replace the "High volume/lower value" tasks that agents deal with every day. Once that begins, agents spend more time becoming knowledge experts for the larger issues.



Al-enabled chatbots can deliver significant ROI through increased selfservice, reduced waiting times, and a massive reduction in set-up and maintenance costs.

By automating routine queries like order status, account info, and more, organizations can serve more customers without increasing headcount or budget. Meanwhile, instant AI responses reduce customer wait times and can contribute to higher CSAT scores. And unlike traditional chatbots that require ongoing content updates, AI chatbots stay up to date with any changes to your website / knowledge base. This slashes the time and workforce costs associated with legacy chatbot deployments.



The return on investment (ROI) in AI-enabled chatbot/voicebot implementations stems from various factors. These include increased self-service containment rates, overall cost savings in service delivery, reallocation of full-time equivalents (FTEs) due to

automation, reduced average handle time (AHT) for live agents, and quicker call response times.

Additionally, success metrics encompass business outcomes, task completion rates, and even sales conversion rates. At Five9, our approach is to conduct a thorough discovery process to assist customers in defining their specific success metrics, ensuring alignment with their business objectives, and maximizing the ROI from the implementation.



kerr

Al-enabled chatbots offer a compelling return on investment (ROI) through a combination of cost savings and revenue generation.

On the cost-saving side, chatbots can significantly reduce the need for human intervention. They can handle routine inquiries and tasks, freeing up human agents to focus on more complex issues that require their expertise and judgment. This translates to reduced agent time and overall operational costs. Additionally, chatbots can offer 24/7 availability, answering questions and providing basic support around the clock, eliminating the need for extended call center hours. Finally, by automating tasks and providing self-service options, chatbots can streamline processes, leading to increased efficiency and potentially lower processing costs.

Al chatbots also have the potential to generate revenue in several ways. They can qualify leads, answer product inquiries, and even recommend products, potentially boosting sales conversion rates. Furthermore, by providing a positive customer experience, chatbots can help build customer satisfaction and loyalty, leading to increased customer lifetime value. Finally, timely and efficient support provided by chatbots can help retain customers and reduce churn rates, ultimately resulting in higher overall revenue.



Many in the contact center space fear that AI is coming for their jobs, agents included. And agents are indeed the biggest cost driver in the contact center when you factor in wages, benefits, and recruiting / onboarding.

But the opportunity isn't to replace agents with AI. Instead, consider how AI can be used to keep their focus on activities that drive value:

Keep Agents Engaged: Deflect rote, low-touch inquiries to AI-driven self-service, saving agents for interactions that need a human touch, increasing agent (and customer) satisfaction and reducing agent attrition.

Minimize Busywork: Al tools transcribe calls in real time and automatically summarize interactions, eliminating tedious, low-value work and ensuring all data is captured.

Evaluate Performance Intelligently: Auto-scoring quality management tools identify areas where agents can improve, and free supervisors to coach and train their agents instead of listening to calls.



THE FUTURE OF CHATBOTS, VOICEBOTS & CONVERSATIONAL AI

There seems little doubt that the eventual overall roadmap of the contact center industry will lead to significant levels of AI involvement in all areas of customer contact. In the foreseeable future, AI is likely to be used to improve self-service and to assist agents, rather than having seismic effects on headcount.

An AI implementation whose success is to be measured mainly by the reduction in HR resource is unlikely to be a success from a customer's perspective. The combination of generative and conversational AI promises much from the perspective of providing a genuine-seeming conversation and lower set-up cost and effort, but deployment in a real customer environment may have risks, as recent high-profile generative AI incidents have proven.

Businesses' interactions with customers will continue to become a highly polarized mixture of the automated and the personal touch. Moving a large proportion of interactions onto self-service reduces business costs, and is increasingly popular with a customer base that is becoming more sophisticated and demanding in what it expects from self-service. All takes this a step beyond, in an increasing number of cases offering personalized service without the need for a human agent.

Looking further ahead, we can expect to see personal technology applications seeking out the best deals on offer or actually interacting with a business without involving the customer at all. This leads to the conclusion that many customer-agent interactions will be exceptional, such as a complaint, an urgent or complex issue or a technical query that an FAQ or customer community couldn't solve. It is also likely that whole segments of the customer base who don't want automation at all will be handled directly by live agents in many cases.

Many self-service scenarios suggest a world in which customers speak directly to 'intelligent' systems, but an "e2e" world is becoming real, where systems talk directly to other systems without a human being involved at all. The customer will delegate many of their business interactions to an intelligent device, which will store information such as personal preferences, financial details and individuals' physical profiles. Customers will instruct the device to research the best deals for products and services, and to come back to the device's owner with the best selection. The personal AI would 'call' the relevant contact center (which could in fact be either a AI or possibly a live agent in some cases) and even purchase the best deal without having to involve the owner in any way.

The same principle applies to customer service: using the 'Internet of things' means that, for example, utilities meters can send their own readings to suppliers on request, and a manufacturer can detect when a part on an appliance is about to fail, and organize a replacement part and engineer visit with the customer's permission.

At this early stage, most businesses might decide that implementing AI in a small scale on a clearly defined user case is the most appropriate action to take, building up their in-house knowledge and expertise while following a strategic implementation roadmap. Chatbots are usually the first move.


In the case of such a heavily hyped solution, expectations should be managed and care taken in identifying and forecasting the improvements that the initial AI implementation can bring, with the success of the project being clearly based around specific, easily understood metrics.

In the longer-term, there's no doubt that AI will be used as a key part of handling customer interactions in most businesses, but the question is: how? The use of AI should be focused on use cases where the AI does a better job than a human, whether that's being quicker, more accurate, available 24/7 or able to see patterns in data that no person could see.

It's our view that customers call live agents not necessarily because they want to hear a friendly voice, or that they're Luddites who won't countenance automation, but because they've found through personal experience that this is the most effective way of making sure their issue is resolved, even if there is significant effort involved.

So while AI-enabled automation will handle much of the simple work, customers will still seek out a live channel for complex or emotional interactions: probably voice, but perhaps digital or video too, as customer confidence in these channels builds up.

Yet even here, AI will be playing a part, identifying the customer's intent, gauging their sentiment, and understanding through past experience what the appropriate actions for the agent will be. Over a long period of time, AI will become thoroughly enmeshed in every element of customer interactions, but we are confident that the human element to customer interactions will remain vital in the times when it is most needed.



ABOUT CONTACTBABEL

ContactBabel is the contact center industry expert. If you have a question about how the industry works, or where it's heading, the chances are we have the answer.

We help US and UK contact centers compare themselves to their closest competitors so they can understand what they are doing well, what needs to improve and how they can do this.

The coverage provided by our massive and ongoing primary research projects is matched by our experience analyzing the contact center industry. We understand how technology, people and process best fit together, and how they will work collectively in the future.

Email: info@contactbabel.com | Website: www.contactbabel.com | Telephone: +44 (0)1434 682244

Free research reports available from <u>www.contactbabel.com</u> (UK and US versions) include:

- The Inner Circle Guide to Agent Engagement & Empowerment
- The Inner Circle Guide to AI-Enabled Agent Assistance
- The Inner Circle Guide to Chatbots, Voicebots & Conversational AI
- The Inner Circle Guide to Cloud-based Contact Center Solutions
- The Inner Circle Guide to Customer Engagement & Personalization
- The Inner Circle Guide to Customer Interaction Analytics
- The Inner Circle Guide to First-Contact Resolution
- The Inner Circle Guide to Fraud Reduction & PCI Compliance
- The Inner Circle Guide to Next-Generation Customer Contact
- The Inner Circle Guide to Omnichannel
- The Inner Circle Guide to Omnichannel Workforce Optimization
- The Inner Circle Guide to Outbound & Call Blending
- The Inner Circle Guide to Remote & Hybrid Working Contact Center Solutions
- The Inner Circle Guide to Self-Service
- The Inner Circle Guide to the Voice of the Customer
- The Australia & New Zealand Contact Centre Decision-Makers' Guide
- The UK Contact Centre Decision-Makers' Guide
- The US Contact Center Decision-Makers' Guide
- The UK Customer Experience Decision-Makers' Guide
- The US Customer Experience Decision-Makers' Guide
- Exceeding UK Customer Expectations
- Exceeding US Customer Expectations
- UK Contact Centre Verticals: Communications; Finance; Insurance; Outsourcing; Retail & Distribution; Utilities
- US Contact Center Verticals: Communications; Finance; Healthcare; Insurance; Outsourcing; Retail & Distribution.